
NOTICE

OF

MEETING

AVIATION FORUM
will meet on

TUESDAY, 1ST NOVEMBER, 2016

At 7.00 pm

in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER - GUILDHALL, 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE AVIATION FORUM

COUNCILLORS JOHN BOWDEN (CHAIRMAN), MALCOLM BEER, SIMON DUDLEY, 
DAVID HILTON AND JOHN LENTON 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS JESSE GREY, DR LILLY EVANS, CARWYN COX, LYNNE JONES AND 
SIMON WERNER

Karen Shepherd - Democratic Services Manager - Issued: 24th October 2016

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Andy Carswell 

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly 
by the nearest exit.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts.  Congregate in the Town Hall 
Car Park, Park Street, Maidenhead (immediately adjacent to the Town Hall) and do not re-enter the building until told 
to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings – The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This 
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are 
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on 
the RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic 
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  WELCOME

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest.
 

5 - 6

4.  MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 9th August 2016.
 

7 - 10

5.  MATTERS ARISING

To consider any matters arising.
 

6.  ACTIONS FOLLOWING DECISION ON THIRD RUNWAY

To consider the Part I report that went to the special meeting of the Cabinet 
Prioritisation Sub Committee on Thursday, 13th October.
 

11 - 48

7.  COMMUNITY NOISE FORUM UPDATE

To receive a verbal update from Cllr Hilton.
 

8.  PARTNERSHIP BODIES

To receive an update regarding key developments from Strategic Aviation 
Special Interest Group (SASIG), Heathrow Airport Consultative Committee 
(HAAC) and Local Authority Aircraft Noise Council (LAANC).
 

9.  DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

27th February 2017
8th May 2017
 





This page is intentionally left blank



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS 
 
 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs) 
 
 
DPIs include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any 
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed 
which has not been fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, 
and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS 
This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would 
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public 
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to 
impartially consider only relevant issues.   
 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or  
Prejudicial Interest.  If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests 
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.  
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the 
item but  must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’ 
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body 
determining the issue.  You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your 
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote, 
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.  
 
If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services 
Officer before participating in the meeting. 
 
If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify 
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  
 
 
 

5

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



AVIATION FORUM

TUESDAY, 9 AUGUST 2016

PRESENT: Councillors Malcolm Beer, Simon Dudley, Dr Lilly Evans, David Hilton 
(Vice-Chair, in the Chair) and John Lenton

Also in attendance: Councillor John Collins

Officers: Andy Carswell, Shilpa Manek and Chris Nash

WELCOME 

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked everyone to introduce 
themselves. He also said that the proceedings were being recorded.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Cllr Bowden and Cllr Dexter Smith of Slough Borough Council.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were noted.

UPDATE ON THE DESIGN PRINCIPLES 

Members received a presentation from Jane Dawes, the Airside Business Change Manager at 
Heathrow, regarding the Compton 09 flight path. She was accompanied by Cheryl Monk, 
Head of Community Relationships and Policy at Heathrow.

Mrs Monk said that changes had been made to the Compton route in 2014 as there had been 
issues with it for several years. Mrs Dawes explained that the Compton route was designated 
as a Noise Preferential Route, meaning that aircraft had a swathe of airspace 3km wide that 
they should fly through while operating at less than 4,000ft. However the percentage of aircraft 
that remained on track using the Compton route was far lower than other routes.

Mrs Dawes went on to explain that Heathrow was trying to redesign the Compton route 
without affecting other flight paths. A trial PIBUG was carried out in July 2014 but abandoned 
after one day due to some confusion caused to pilots’ considerations. Mrs Dawes said the 
Community Noise Forum was set up to help investigate, amongst other items, what redesign 
options were open.

Cllr Beer arrived at the meeting at 7.28pm.

Mrs Dawes said that it was unlikely the Compton route would be redesigned before the 2020 
deadline.

Mrs Dawes said that ANSPs, airlines and Heathrow Airport and the community had each been 
consulted over their prioritised design principles over flight paths. Both groups indicated that 
safety was their top priority, with noise levels and their consequent health effects considered a 
key priority by the community. However tests to establish to what extent there is a correlation 
between the height a plane flies at – up to 7,000ft - and the amount of noise that is heard at 
ground level still need to be carried out. Mrs Dawes said that Heathrow wanted to make sure 
that all aircraft stuck to the Noise Preferential Routes, and that airlines were keen for this 

7

Agenda Item 4



process to be carried out and completed in the short term. The Chairman said that the Council 
agreed that its priority was to consider aircraft noise levels up to a height of 7,000ft.

A member of the public told Members that the main concerns of Datchet residents related to 
noise pollution and air pollution. He said that most aircraft overfly Datchet at heights of 
approximately 3,000ft, but A380 aircraft fly lower than that. He suggested that departures 
should not be concentrated over one flight path. Mrs Monk said that the subject of respite for 
residents was being included in the Future of Airspace report, but this would not be ready for 
some years.

A member of the public stated that population growths should be considered as part of the 
redesign of flight paths.

Another member of the public asked how the Compton route would be affected if the 
Government ruled that a third runway should be built at Heathrow. Mrs Monk said that a 
number of indicative flight paths had been submitted, but at the moment it was impossible to 
say where future flight paths would go as it would depend on the Government policy at that 
time. She said that the indicative flight paths would also be dependent on a number of factors, 
which will be determined by future public consultations.

Cllr Beer said that members of the LAANC would appreciate a greater amount of involvement 
in discussions regarding noise levels.

Mrs Monk told Members that in the event of expansion at Heathrow, morning arrivals would 
henceforth not be scheduled to land before 5.30am and the airport had not requested any 
additional morning arrivals. The Leader said that if a third runway was agreed then he would 
be seeking a legally binding agreement preventing morning arrivals before 5.30am, with the 
threat of financial penalties if residents are inconvenienced by early morning flights.

A suggestion was made to the Chairman to hold a future session on night flights and landings 
at Heathrow.

The Chairman thanked the contingent from Heathrow Airport for attending the meeting. The 
Heathrow Airport representatives left the meeting.

MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting of Tuesday, 10th May were agreed as an accurate record.

The Acting Head of Community Protection & Enforcement Services said that the second item 
for Action made at the meeting of Tuesday, 10th May had not been completed due to the 
changes at the DfT and Cabinet. He said the Action would not be able to be completed until a 
political decision could be made.

MATTERS ARISING 

The Acting Head of Community Protection & Enforcement Services reminded Members that 
since the last meeting a new Prime Minister and Cabinet had been appointed. He noted that 
all of the new appointees to Cabinet had had their stance over expansion at Heathrow 
published in the media, with the new Transport Secretary being reported as saying he wanted 
a decision to be made at the earliest possible opportunity.

A member of the public raised the fact that a recent report, which was discussed at the last 
meeting, stated that 36 per cent of passengers at Heathrow were transfer passengers. The 
member of the public went on to say the Council should therefore challenge the importance of 
the economic argument in Heathrow’s expansion plans. The Acting Head of Community 
Protection & Enforcement Services said that this had been raised in the Council’s original 
submissions to the Airports Commission.

8



UPDATE ON THE RBWM RESIDENT POLL CONCERNING AIRPORT CAPACITY IN 
THE SOUTH-EAST 

The Acting Head of Community Protection & Enforcement Services reminded Members that 
the Royal Borough undertook an opinion poll in January 2015 to gauge residents’ views on 
airport expansion in the south-east.

In light of the General Election and EU Referendum held subsequently to the survey, the 
decision was taken to carry out a second poll and compare the responses from residents, in 
order to give a clearer outline of the Royal Borough’s position going forward.

The second survey was carried out in July 2016 by Ipsos Mori, following instructions from the 
Royal Borough. Ipsos Mori were told to take sample answers from all age groups and wards, 
and to ensure a proportionate sample of residents that are overflown by Heathrow air traffic 
and those that are not.

Ipsos Mori informed the Royal Borough it was confident that a sample of 1,000 people would 
provide an accurate account of residents’ views on airport expansion. It therefore interviewed 
a total of 1,004 people.

The Acting Head of Community Protection & Enforcement Services told Members that the 
results of the second survey were broadly similar to the one carried out in January 2015. The 
new survey showed a 4-6% net opposition to a new or extended runway to the north-west of 
Heathrow Airport, compared to 8% opposition in the previous one. It also stated there was a 
net 37% support for a new or extended runway at Gatwick Airport, and that residents had 
expressed a preference for the number of air traffic movements at Heathrow to remain at their 
current levels.

The Acting Head of Community Protection & Enforcement Services said this reaffirmed the 
Council’s mandate of highlighting that more can be done to mitigate the impact of Heathrow 
air traffic on residents who are overflown. He added that the results of the survey, including a 
full breakdown of answers to the questions, would be published to the Council’s website.

The Leader said that as a result of the survey the Council would write to the new Prime 
Minister to outline its residents’ mandate. He added that the Royal Borough had authorisation 
– along with partners at Hillingdon Borough, Richmond Borough and Wandsworth Councils – 
to launch a legal challenge in the event of Government recommending an expansion of 
Heathrow as a result of the survey findings.

PARTNERSHIP BODIES 

SASIG
The Acting Head of Community Protection & Enforcement Services said there were no 
comments relating to SASIG.

HAAC
The Acting Head of Community Protection & Enforcement Services said that there was no 
update in relation to HAAC as Cllr Bowden had attended the previous meeting.

LAANC
Cllr Beer said the group had recently received a presentation from the new Public Relations 
Officer for NATS and had had the opportunity to question him at length. Cllr Beer said the 
group was very impressed by the Officer and would look to build on this new relationship.

Cllr Beer said new statistics relating to noise monitors had become available and requested a 
discussion on them. The Chairman indicated this could be an agenda item at the next 
meeting.

9



DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

The date of the next meeting was noted by Members.

The meeting, which began at 7.00pm, finished at 9.15pm. 

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

10



 

  

 

                                      
 

Contains Confidential  
or Exempt Information  

No - Part I  
Yes Part II - Appendix C - Not for publication by 
virtue of paragraph 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 

Title Heathrow Airport expansion – legal challenge 

Responsible Officer(s) Alison Alexander, Managing Director & Strategic 
Director Adults, Children and Heath Services   

Contact officer, job title 
and phone number 

Simon Fletcher, Strategic Director Operations and 
Customer Services  

Member reporting Cllr Cox Lead Member Environmental Services & 
Parking 

For Consideration By Cabinet Prioritisation Sub Committee 

Date to be Considered 13 October 2016 

Implementation Date if  
Not Called In 

Immediately  

Affected Wards All 

Key Words Airports Commission, Heathrow expansion, legal 
challenge 

 

REPORT SUMMARY 
 
The Government is about to announce its decision regarding the expansion of 
runway capacity in South East England.  This report sets out the background and 
proposed next steps for the Royal Borough in response to that announcement. 
 
It seeks approval for the Royal Borough to work in Partnership with 2M partners: 
London Borough of Hillingdon, Richmond and Wandsworth to develop a response.  
The position of 2M, prior to the announcement, has been to oppose the building of 
a third runway at Heathrow Airport and the report explores the possibility for 
seeking judicial review – should the government decision be to build one.  
 

 

If recommendations are adopted, how will residents benefit? 

Benefits to residents and reasons why they will 
benefit. 

Dates by which they can expect 
to notice a difference. 

The long held position of the council is to protect 
the environment of the Borough for the 
residents and in this respect to minimise the 
degree of noise population on the residents.  
Residents will benefit if the challenge by 2M of 

The timeline of a legal challenge 
will be clarified – which will 
inform when residents could 
notice a difference.  
. 

Report for: ACTION 

11

Agenda Item 6



 

the Government’s decision is successful.  

 
 
 
1. DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

RECOMMENDATION: That Cabinet: 
 

i) Delegates authority to the Leader of the Council and Managing 
Director in consultation with an internal ‘Heathrow/JR working 
group’, chaired by the Leader and including Lead Member for 
Environmental Services & Parking, Principal Member for Human 
Resources and Legal, Chairman of the Aviation Forum, Managing 
Director, Strategic Director of Operations & Customer Services, to 
build a robust Judicial Review case against any decision made by 
Government to expand Heathrow Airport and to give instructions for 
the issue of legal proceedings if appropriate. 

 
ii) Approves (if required) sharing of the Royal Borough’s position to the 

Aviation Forum, scheduled for 3rd November 2016. 
 
 
2. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION AND OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
2.1. Members will be aware of the Royal Borough’s response to the Airports 

Commission (AC) in February 2015 and correspondence sent to government 
concerning the legality of any potential decision on any expansion of runway 
capacity in the South East of England.  The Royal Borough’s response to date 
has been undertaken in partnership with the London Boroughs of Hillingdon, 
Richmond and Wandsworth, the 2M Group. 
 

2.2. The Borough undertook a survey of residents in January 2015 on airport 
expansion.  In light of the recent change in the national political landscape, 
and the time that has elapsed since the first resident poll the Council 
undertook a second resident survey, July 2016, to gauge current Borough-
wide opinion on airport expansion. The results obtained, see Appendix A 
reaffirmed and demonstrated a similar position to those obtained in 2015, with 
a net 4%-6% opposition to expansion at Heathrow.  Residents reiterated their 
support (net 37%) for Gatwick as the better expansion mechanism before the 
commission.  
 

2.3. The Leader of the Council, supported by Cabinet, in response to the resident 
poll results, reaffirmed the Borough’s opposition to any expansion – stating 
that this resident mandate was clear and that the Royal Borough continues to 
believe that Heathrow should be “better not bigger”.  This position is made in 
conjunction with fellow 2M Council Leaders: Cllr Raymond Puddifoot 
(Hillingdon), Lord True (Richmond), Cllr Ravi Govindia (Wandsworth). 
 

2.4. The resident mandate aligns with the administrations manifesto commitments 
to:  
 

 “maintain its lobby against Heathrow expansion” and  

12



 

 “Continue the campaign against Heathrow expansion and to protect 
Windsor from night flights and more aeroplanes” 

 
2.5. Cabinet and full Council have considered the impacts of Heathrow Airport on 

numerous occasions.  Most recently Council unanimously supported a motion 

“to wholeheartedly endorse and publicise the letter of the RBWM Lead 
Member for Planning to the Prime Minister and Minister for Housing and 
Planning which opposed an additional runway at Heathrow and emphasises 
that this would negate a previous Government decision regarding an airport 
monopoly”,  see Appendix B. 

  
Current legal position 

2.6 In December 2015, Members approved the Royal Borough joining 2M 
colleagues and the collective appointment of Kate Harrison, Harrison Grant as 
a specialist legal representative for the group.  In January 2016, 2M met with 
Counsel to understand the legal principles by which 2M could challenge the 
Government’s potential decision. 

 
2.7 Harrison Grant has written a number of letters to the Government to set out 

the Council’s objections to expansion at Heathrow, see Appendix B.  
Essentially, the argument is that expansion at Heathrow should be ruled out 
once and for all because that is what was promised by David Cameron and 
because Heathrow expansion would have unacceptable environmental impact. 

 
2.8 Furthermore, through the correspondence, the 2M partners have requested 

that any further information arising from the work already set out by the AC, be 
properly explained and consulted upon.  The Department of Transport has so 
far failed to answer 2M requests for an undertaking, that further consultation 
on all aspects of the ‘further package of work’ reported will take place. 

 
2.9 Given that Government’s decision on future runway expansion is imminent, 

preparation for a JR launch is now pertinent, subject to further legal advice 
from Counsel.  

 
2.10 A robust communications strategy will support action implemented by the 

Council and 2M partners.  This will utilise social media, online correspondence 
and more traditional communication channels as appropriate. 
   

Option Comments 

Partner with 2M authorities, 
secure legal opinion on JR 
process, and, if required, 
authorise instigation of JR.  
 
This option is recommended. 
 

This option is in line with the Council’s 
position on expansion of Heathrow to 
date, and the mandate of residents 
reaffirmed through a residents’ survey in 
July 2016 and legal advice received from 
Counsel.  

Should Heathrow Airport be 
chosen for expansion, accept 
the Government’s decision and 
drop the proposal of legal 
challenge. 
 
This option is not 

This is not recommended because it 
ignores the strength of feeling of 
residents of the Royal Borough, and the 
clear principles and arguments set out by 
Counsel. 

13



 

Option Comments 

recommended. 

 
 
3. KEY IMPLICATIONS  
 

Defined 
Outcomes 

Unmet Met Exceeded Significantly 
Exceeded 

Date they 
should be 
delivered 
by 

JR 
undertaken is 
successful 
and a verdict 
made that 
the 
Government’
s decision is 
not legal.  

JR 
Unsucces
sful  

JR 
Successf
ul, with 
the 
governm
ent 
needing 
to make 
a 
decision 
on how it 
takes 
Aviation 
Policy 
forward.  

JR 
Successful, 
with the 
government 
abandoning 
outright 
further 
potential 
expansion 
at the 
airport 

 

JR Successful, 
with the 
government 
abandoning 
future 
expansion at 
Heathrow & 
making further 
assertions that 
the airport 
needs to ‘get 
better, without 
getting bigger’.  

Nov 2017 

 
4. FINANCIAL DETAILS 

 
Financial impact on the budget 

 

4.1. The JR instigated by the Council in respect of Shurlock Road has been used 
to estimate the potential costs expected should a similar process be instigated 
for this matter.  Total costs for Shurlock Road were £50k comprising £30k 
Counsel fees and £20k Shared Legal Services fees. 
 

4.2. Cabinet approved a £10k revenue budget at its meeting of 30 June 2016 for 
the provision of legal advice and initial preparation of legal documentation for 
the Heathrow expansion challenge.  Cabinet also made provision for £20k 
revenue that would be assigned should a JR become necessary.  This paper 
seeks budget provision for the balance of £50k referred to in 4.1 above and 
includes the £20k referred to in the June 2016 paper. 

 

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Addition £0 £40k £0 

Reduction £0 £0 £0 

 
4.3. Capital funding is not being sought. 

 

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Addition £0 £0 £0 

Reduction £0 £0 £0 

 
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

14



 

 
5.1 Sub Prioritisation Committee would be making a decision on behalf of Cabinet.  

Cabinet is able to carry out all functions which are not the responsibility of any 
other part of the Authority, whether by law or under the constitution.  (Part 3 A 
A1.1 The Role of Cabinet). 

 
6. VALUE FOR MONEY  

 
6.1. Efficient use of the Councils available funds is essential.  However, use of 

Council funding in this way, where there is a clear resident mandate, 
significant potential impact on the quality of life of Royal Borough residents 
and strong grounds to challenge the Government’s decision making process in 
this issue, satisfies the value for money test. 

 
7. SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT APPRAISAL  

 
7.1. The issue of expansion at Heathrow raises a number of sustainability issues.  

Particularly those relating to improving the quality of life and seeking to strike 
the correct balance between the societal interests of various community 
groups located around Heathrow Airport and the economic and environmental 
issues associated with further expansion.  

 
8. RISK MANAGEMENT  

 

Risk Uncontrolled 
Risk 

Controls Controlled 
Risk 

Runway expansion 
at Heathrow will 
lead to impacts 
from aircraft 
movements and 
the operation of 
the airport being 
exacerbated and 
experienced by 
parts of the 
Borough currently 
unaffected. 

High Commencing a Judicial 
Review as part of the 
2M partnership will 
enable the Council to 
challenge the 
Government’s 
assessment of these 
impacts.  Future 
expansion at Heathrow 
may be avoided if the 
JR is successfully 
upheld. 

Medium 

Potential financial 
risk of losing a JR 
is estimated to be 
circa. £200k. 

High Instigating JR in 
partnership with other 
2M authorities will 
reduce this impact.  The 
Council has been 
accepted onto the 2M 
legal grouping on an 
equal footing with a 
maximum financial 
exposure of circa. £30k 

Medium 

 
 

9. LINKS TO STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  
 

15



 

9.1  Residents First – The Council will seek to protect residents from the potential 
adverse environmental impacts e.g. air quality, aircraft noise, and 
transportation impacts e.g. increased congestion and the increased pressure 
and demand on infrastructure e.g. additional housing, schools etc. that the 
expansion of Heathrow Airport could have. 

 
9.2 Delivering Together – The Council recognises that it is one of a number of 

areas affected by any decision to expand Heathrow Airport.  It is therefore 
prudent that the Council works in alliance with these like minded authorities.  It 
is hoped that this will provide strength in voice and representation so as to 
increase as far is possible a positive outcome for Borough residents. 
 

10. EQUALITIES, HUMAN RIGHTS AND COMMUNITY COHESION  
 

10.1. As set out in paragraph 2.7 above, Human Rights: Impact associated with 
residents & businesses making conclusions and ‘living decisions’ based on 
these expectations – are one of the arguments upon which a challenge to the 
Governments decision on airport expansion will be based.  

 
11. STAFFING/WORKFORCE AND ACCOMMODATION IMPLICATIONS 

 
11.1. None. 
 
12. PROPERTY AND ASSETS  

 
12.1. None. 
 
13. ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

13.1. N/A 
 

14. CONSULTATION  
 

14.1. This report and the decision will be considered at the Aviation Forum on 2nd 
November. 
 

15. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION  
 

October 2016 Cabinet decision 

October 2016 Meeting (together with 2M partners) with Nigel Pleming 
QC to set out a 2M response and JR timeline should 
Heathrow be chosen as the expansion site. 
 
Formation of RBWM / Heathrow JR working group 

TBC JR Launch (following advice from QC) 

 
16. APPENDICES  

 
APPENDIX A: Headline data from IPSOS MORI resident poll   
APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence 
APPENDIX C: PART II - CONFIDENTIAL 

16



 

 
        
17. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Cabinet Report  - 30 June 2016 – Heathrow Expansion – Legal Challenge 

 
18. CONSULTATION (MANDATORY) 
 

Name of  
consultee  

Post held and  
Department  

Date sent Date  
received  

See 
comments:  

Internal      

Cllr Cox Cabinet Member for 
Environmental 
Services (including 
Parking) 

10/10/16   

Cllr 
Targowska 

Principal Member for 
HR and Legal 

10/10/16   

Cllr 
Bowden 

Chair, Aviation Forum 10/10/16   

Cllr Lyn 
Jones 

Leader of the 
Opposition 

10/10/16 10/10/16  

Simon 
Fletcher 

Strategic Director of 
Operations 

9/1010/16   

Alison 
Alexander 

Managing Director/ 
Strategic Director 
Adults, Children and 
Health 

9/10/16 9/10/16 Throughout  

Russell 
O’Keefe 

Strategic Director 
Corporate and 
Community Services 

9/10/16   

Mark 
Lampard 

Finance Partner 10/10/16   

 
REPORT HISTORY  
 

Decision type: Urgency item? 

For information  YES.  An urgent decision is required owing to the short 
timescales associated with launching JR. This is particularly 
prevalent owing to the joint nature of the legal action with 2M 
partners.   

 

Report author Job title Full contact no: 

Simon Fletcher Strategic Director of Operations and 
Customer Services 

01628  

 

17



 

Appendix A: Headline data from IPSOS MORI resident poll   
   

        

  

 

 2015  2016 
  Base size: all respondents 1014 1004 

Q1. To what extent do you support or oppose the option for a 
new runway to the North West of Heathrow Airport?     

  Strongly support 14% 18% 
  Tend to support 17% 16% 
  No feelings either way 27% 25% 
  Tend to oppose 12% 12% 
  Strongly oppose 26% 26% 
  Don't know 4% 3% 

  Support 31% 34% 

  Oppose 38% 38% 

  Net support -8% -4% 

        

  Base size: all respondents 1014 1004 
Q2. To what extent do you support or oppose the option to 

provide a new runway at Heathrow Airport by extending the 
existing northern runway to the west? 

    
  Strongly support 13% 14% 
  Tend to support 17% 18% 
  No feelings either way 26% 26% 
  Tend to oppose 11% 12% 
  Strongly oppose 28% 26% 
  Don't know 5% 4% 

  Support 30% 32% 

  Oppose 38% 38% 

  Net support -8% -6% 

        

  Base size: all respondents 1014 1004 
Q3. And to what extent do you support or oppose the building 

of a new runway at Gatwick Airport?     
  Strongly support 27% 28% 
  Tend to support 23% 22% 
  No feelings either way 32% 34% 
  Tend to oppose 7% 6% 
  Strongly oppose 8% 7% 
  Don't know 3% 3% 

  Support 50% 50% 

  Oppose 14% 13% 

  Net support 35% 37% 

        

  Base size: all respondents 1014 1004 
Q4. In your opinion, should the number of flights at Heathrow 

Airport be increased, reduced, or remain the same as they 
are currently? 

    
  The number of flights should be increased 21% 26% 
  The number of flights should remain as they are 58% 56% 
  The number of flights should be reduced 13% 11% 
  Don't know 8% 7% 

        

18



 

  Base size: all respondents 1014 1004 
Q5. And in your opinion, should the number of night flights at 

Heathrow Airport be increased, reduced, or remain the 
same as they are currently? By night flights, I mean flights 
between the hours of 11.30pm and 6.30am. 

    
  The number of night flights should be increased 10% 8% 
  The number of night flights should remain as they are 57% 62% 
  The number of night flights should be reduced 28% 26% 
  Don't know 5% 4% 

        

  Base size: all respondents 1014 1004 
QAGE. Age     

  18-24 8% 8% 
  25-34 16% 15% 
  35-44 16% 14% 
  45-54 22% 23% 
  55-64 13% 14% 
  65+ 25% 24% 
  Refused 0% 2% 

  18-34 24% 23% 

        

  Base size: all respondents 1014 1004 
QGENDER. Gender     

  Male 49% 49% 
  Female 51% 51% 

        

  Base size: all respondents 1014 1004 
QWORK. Working status     

  Working - Full-time (30+ hrs/wk) 48% 48% 
  Working - Part-time (8-29 hrs/wk) 13% 13% 
  Working - (under 8 hrs/wk) 1% 1% 
  Housewife/husband 4% 4% 
  Retired 25% 26% 
  Registered unemployed 2% 1% 
  Unemployed but not registered 2% 2% 
  Permanently sick/disabled 1% * 
  On a training scheme - - 
  Voluntary work * - 
  Student 4% 4% 
  Other 1% 1% 
  Refused - - 

  Working 62% 62% 

  Not working 38% 38% 

        

  Base size: all respondents 1014 1004 
QTENURE. Can you tell me which of these best describes the 

ownership of your home?     
  Being bought on a mortgage 36% 40% 
  Owned outright 40% 41% 
  Rented (private) 9% 9% 
  Rented (Local Authority/Council) 3% 2% 
  Rented (Housing association/Trust) 5% 5% 
  Other 2% 1% 
  Prefer not to say 3% 2% 
  Don't know 2% 1% 

  Owner occupiers 77% 81% 

  Social tenants 8% 7% 

        

  Base size: all respondents 1014 1004 
QAIRPORT. Which, if any, of the following applies to you?     

19



 

  I work at Heathrow Airport 2% 2% 
  A member of my family works at Heathrow Airport 5% 6% 
  My job is dependent on Heathrow Airport 4% 3% 
  A member of my family's job is dependent on Heathrow Airport 6% 4% 
  None of these 88% 88% 
  Don't know * * 

  I/relative work at Heathrow/work depends on it 12% 12% 

        

  Base size: all respondents 1014 1004 
QAIRPORT 

USAGE 
Have you used Heathrow Airport for either work or leisure 
flights in the past five years?     

  Yes, more than once a year 43% 42% 
  Yes, but only about once a year or less 37% 34% 
  No, not at all 19% 23% 
  Don't know/can't remember 1% 1% 

  Used Heathrow Airport within the past 5 years 80% 76% 

        

  Base size: all respondents 1014 1004 
AREA 

FLOWN 
OVER. 

  

    
  Area overflown (excluding flight trail areas) 33% 37% 
  Area not overflown 47% 54% 
  Flight trial area 11% 10% 
  Unknown (no postcode provided) 9% 0% 

  Area overflown/flight trial area 43% 46% 

        

 
 
 
 
 

20



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 1 of 28

21



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 2 of 28

22



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 3 of 28

23



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 4 of 28

24



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 5 of 28

25



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 6 of 28

26



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 7 of 28

27



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 8 of 28

28



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 9 of 28

29



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 10 of 28

30



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 11 of 28

31



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 12 of 28

32



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 13 of 28

33



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 14 of 28

34



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 15 of 28

35



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 16 of 28

36



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 17 of 28

37



 

HARRISON GRANT IS AUTHORISED AND REGULATED BY THE SOLICITORS REGULATION AUTHORITY, No. 599499. A LIST OF 
THE NAMES OF THE PARTNERS AND THEIR PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS IS OPEN TO INSPECTION AT OUR OFFICE 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Robert Goodwill MP 
Minister of State for Transport 
Great Minster House 
33 Horseferry Road 
London         our ref:  HIL0018 
SW1P 4DR        your ref: MC/157362 
         
 
 
 
 

24th March 2016 
 
 
Dear Sir 
 
 
Thank you for your letter of 16 March 2016, received here on 18th March and written in reply 
to our letter of 9th February 2016 to the Prime Minister. 
 
Your letter does not respond to the important points we raised on behalf of our clients, the 
local authorities, and their residents whose lives are most affected by any Government 
decision about Heathrow airport. 
 
We therefore reserve our right to raise a challenge to any final decision to support 
expansion at Heathrow airport including, but not limited to, the grounds set out in our letter 
of 9th February 2016. 
 
In your penultimate paragraph you say “I am sure you will understand that I am not able to 
comment substantively at this stage on the points you raise.” 
 
On the contrary, we see no reason at all why you, or the Prime minister, should not 
comment on the important issues raised and why our clients, who are the local authorities 
with responsibilities including planning, air quality and public health around Heathrow, 
should not be fully involved in the decision making process.  In our view anything less than 
full participation, in accordance with the Aarhus convention and its implementing legislation, 
and consistent with our clients’ duties and responsibilities, would be unlawful.  
 
We therefore repeat our request that you commit to consultation including in relation to the 
“package of further work which [the Government] anticipates will conclude over the 
summer” and that any such consultation will also include compliance with the Air Quality 

APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 18 of 28

38



 

Directive, environmental detriment, mitigation measures and any further work on the 
economic case for expansion. 
 
Otherwise, please confirm expressly  that the Government is not intending to engage in any 
further consultation with affected parties on the topics we have identified but instead 
intends to conduct any work and assessment in relation to airport expansion in secret.   We 
hope that is not the case, but if so please let us know whether you will be involving 
Heathrow Airport and others with a commercial or other interest in airport expansion in the 
further work and excluding only those opposed to airport expansion. 
 
We look forward to hearing from you. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
 
Harrison Grant 
 
c Government Legal Department 

APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 19 of 28

39



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 20 of 28

40



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 21 of 28

41



APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 22 of 28

42



 

HARRISON GRANT IS AUTHORISED AND REGULATED BY THE SOLICITORS REGULATION AUTHORITY, No. 599499. A LIST OF 
THE NAMES OF THE PARTNERS AND THEIR PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS IS OPEN TO INSPECTION AT OUR OFFICE 

 

Charlotte Moss 
Airport Capacity Directorate 
Department for Transport 
Great Minster House 
33 Horseferry Road 
London  
SW1P 4DR       KH/HIL0018 
        30 September 2016 

 

Dear Madam 

Re: Our clients, the London Boroughs of Hillingdon, Richmond and Wandsworth 

and the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead. 

We write following our letter to Secretary of State for Transport, dated 8 July 2016 and your 

response dated 1 August 2016.1  

Our view remains that the only decision consistent with the information which has been 

made publicly available for consultation and the promises outlined in our previous 

correspondence is to rule out, without delay, further expansion at Heathrow Airport. 

For the reasons set out in our previous letters, and below, there are no grounds upon which 

the Government can lawfully depart from our clients’ legitimate expectations, and those of 

their residents.  

Any new information or analysis which the Government believes might justify such a 

decision should be consulted on in advance of any decision.  If not and consultation is 

carried out only after the Government has made up its mind, then a subsequent 

consultation will be viewed as sham.2 

                                                           

1
 Your letter refers to a letter from the Department of Transport dated 13 April 2016. We did not receive such a 

letter. Your letter of 8 July 2016 was addressed to 44 Beech Street, whereas our offices are at 45 Beech Street 

which may explain why your previous letter has not reached us.  Please provide a copy. 
2
 The Prime Minister will understand these concerns:  see her letter in response to “Adding Capacity at 

Heathrow Airport” 

APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 23 of 28

43



 

For the avoidance of doubt, that means there should be consultation in advance of any 

Government decision to favour expansion at LHR. 

Further work has been cloaked in secrecy 

As set out below, despite our repeated requests for further consultation, the package of 

work announced in December 2015 has not been published. 

Instead, the Government has carried out its further work, including work with the 

developers, in secrecy. As a result, our clients simply do not know when or how or on what 

basis a decision on the preferred scheme will be made.  

We note from reports in the press that it appears that the government will proceed to make 

an announcement on either 11 or 18 October. The process of decision making is also 

shrouded in mystery. There are some reports that it will be made by a cabinet sub-

committee – others that there will be a debate and free vote in Parliament. It is also not 

clear whether the Government plans to reach a decision on location in October, with a draft 

NPS to follow or whether the intention is to publish a draft NPS in October.  

It is not right that our clients should be kept in the dark.  Given the importance of the 

decision and the impact a decision to support Heathrow expansion would have on the 

residents of the Boroughs the lack of openness and transparency is of great concern. 

Further information and consultation required 

Air Quality 

The Government accepted that further work needed to be done on Air Quality. The 

Secretary of State indicated in June that such further work would be published “soon”. It 

has not been. Despite our request in our letter of 8 July 2016 you have not provided the 

date upon which you intend to publish the further analysis. 

The EU limits on NO2 concentrations remain binding. There is nothing in the public domain 

to suggest that expansion at Heathrow has been assessed against the Government’s Air 

Quality Plan, which is in any event subject to a judicial review challenge. 

Even in the absence of any EU mandated targets on air quality, it would be unlawful for the 

Government to favour Heathrow without first fully understanding the impact of air and noise 

pollution on the surrounding community. The Government is subject to the Public Sector 

APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 24 of 28

44



 

Equality Duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requiring it to have due regard to, 

among other things, eliminating discrimination and advancing equality of opportunity. The 

duty applies to the formulation of policy. The duty must be fulfilled before and at the time 

that a policy is being considered and be exercised in substance, with rigour and an open 

mind (R (Bracking) v Secretary of State for Work and Pensions [2013] EWCA Civ 1345). The 

decision as to where to locate a third runway in the South East is clearly caught by this 

requirement. 

The grave health impacts of poor air quality are well known, but there has been recent 

research which suggests even more severe impacts, particularly for the young and for the 

elderly.  It is also increasingly becoming clear that the effects of noise and air pollution are 

disproportionately felt by those with a lower socioeconomic status.   For example, in 

September 2016, the European Commission published a report which sets out that people of 

low socioeconomic status face a greater risk of heart disease, mental health problems and 

poor sleep and that deprived populations living in areas of pollution will experience the 

worst affects. A GLA report found that in London, populations living in the most deprived 

areas are on average currently more exposed to poor air quality than those in less deprived 

areas.  

As we have already pointed out, the health and equalities analysis in the Airports 

Commission Report was wholly deficient. The impact of increased noise and air pollution on 

those who share a protected characteristic is dealt with in a few short paragraphs. No 

rigorous analysis was carried out. Instead, the approach taken by the Airports Commission 

was to say that full health and equality impact assessments could be carried out after a 

decision on location had been made and the favoured scheme was being developed. This 

approach is wrong in principle. The Government cannot properly decide to depart from its 

earlier promises, based as they were on the environmental impact of expansion, without 

understanding the impact the scheme would have on those who share a protected 

characteristic. 

A decision which favours Heathrow now, without consultation and a proper analysis of the 

health and equality impact of locating a third runway at Heathrow, would be in breach of 

the public sector equality duty 

 

 

APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 25 of 28

45



 

Noise and Mitigation  

On 29 September 2016, Heathrow announced “new radical expansion plans”. These plans, it 

is claimed, could be implemented while the third runway was being constructed. They 

involve an increase in overall flight numbers by 25,000 a year, on current levels, above the 

current ceiling on flights.  If implemented, this would mean at least two additional flights per 

hour and lead to intolerable and unlawful increases in air and noise pollution.  It is of 

concern that these plans have been announced without any prior consultation with our 

clients and, in particular, with Hillingdon, the local planning authority.   

 

Any expansion at Heathrow would have consequences for noise and air pollution, 

infrastructure, pressure on the green belt and blight affecting our clients. 

Heathrow’s proposed mitigation measures, which include a ban on night flights before 0530, 

noise insulation for homes under the flight path and noise monitoring equipment are 

expressed in vague terms which cannot meaningfully be assessed or considered. Any 

proposals for mitigation should be tested through informed public consultation before any 

decision is made. 

 

Economic Case 

No further analysis of the economic case has been published.  

On 14 September 2016, the Chairman of the Treasury Select Committee wrote to the 

Secretary of State for Transport referring to a discussion on 15 August 2016 where the 

Secretary of State and the Chairman discussed the need for clear answers on the economic 

case for Heathrow and Gatwick. The letter records that for over 10 months, no answers 

have been forthcoming from either the Department of Transport or the Treasury. The 

Chairman goes on to say that: 

“Failure to answer them will lead people either to conclude that this work has not 

been done in which case it would be unacceptable for a decision to be made without 

the evidence to support it -or that it has been done, and gives answers that do not 

necessarily support the conclusions of the Davies report.” 

APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 26 of 28

46



 

The questions, which are attached to the letter, identify a number of significant gaps in the 

Airport Commission’s analysis. 

In our view, the further economic analysis should not only be published: it should be 

consulted on. 

Furthermore, we note that Heathrow has now sought to reduce the costs of its scheme by 

about £3 billion. This, in addition to the information we provided in our letter of 8 July, calls 

into question the Airports Commission’s conclusion that the Heathrow proposal for a third 

runway was economically viable. The Government does not appear to have re-visited the 

conclusions of the Airports Commission Report now that Heathrow has altered its proposed 

scheme. This is yet another reason why the Airports Commission Report cannot now be 

relied upon and why further public consultation is needed before a decision favouring 

Heathrow could be made.  

Conclusion 

We therefore invite you to rule out expansion at Heathrow now, without any further delay. 

If there is further information which the Government believes would justify breaking the 

promises made to our clients and our residents, then it should be properly explained and 

consulted upon. The Department of Transport has so far failed to answer our requests for 

an undertaking that further consultation on all aspects of the further package of work will 

take place, but there can be no justification for this one-sided approach to a decision on 

airport expansion which seems to involve listening to the developers, and encouraging them 

to publish expansion plans, but excluding and withholding information from local authorities, 

residents, the general public and even parliament. 

If you were to make a decision to favour expansion at Heathrow, without further informed 

consultation, then that decision would be in breach of our clients’ legitimate expectations, 

your duty to consult, our clients’ residents’ Article 8 rights and the public sector equality 

duty. 

Please acknowledge safe receipt of this letter and reply within 7 days. 

Yours faithfully 

Harrison Grant 

APPENDIX B: 2M Letters/Legal Correspondence Page 27 of 28

47



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	4 MINUTES
	6 ACTIONS FOLLOWING DECISION ON THIRD RUNWAY

